## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the defendant in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Indian River County, Florida, and the appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent was the prosecution and the appellee below.

In the brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The following symbol will be used:

· \*

R = Record on Appeal

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner Tedd J. Popple was charged by two-count Information with possession of drug paraphernalia in violation of section 893.147, <u>Fla. Stat.</u> (1991) and with possession of cocaine in violation of section 893.13(1)(f) (R 42-43). He sought suppression of physical evidence (cocaine and a pipe) and statements, on the basis that the stop was not supported by a founded suspicion of unlawful conduct. He contended that he was seated in a legally parked car in a residential area in the middle of the day and was not involved in any unlawful activity when the officer came up to his vehicle and directed him to exit. The lower court denied Petitioner's motion to suppress and Petitioner entered a plea of nolo contendere to each charge, reserving his right to appeal the denial of the suppression motion.

On appeal by Petitioner, the Fourth District Court of Appeal affirmed this disposition by written opinion, holding that there was not a stop here but a "consensual encounter" and that directing Petitioner to exit his vehicle did not turn the "consensual encounter" into a stop (Appendix 1-8). The majority recognized that this ruling conflicted with <u>Brown v. State</u>, 577 So.2d 708 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991) and with <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 579 So.2d 871 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) (Appendix 1-5, 9-10, 11-12). The Second District in <u>Brown, supra</u> and the Fifth District in <u>Jackson</u>, <u>supra</u>, held under similar facts that ordering an accused out of a vehicle was a detention which requires a founded suspicion (Appendix 9-10, 11-12).

- 2 -

Judge Anstead dissented, stating that the stop was not supported by a founded suspicion and thus unlawful (Appendix 5-8). Judge Anstead relied upon <u>Brown</u>, <u>supra</u> and <u>Jackson</u>, <u>supra</u> as well as the more recent case from the Second District, <u>Gano v. State</u>, 17 F.L.W. 1422 (Fla. 2d DCA June 3, 1992) as bases for reversing (Appendix 5-8).

Petitioner moved for rehearing based upon the argument contained in the dissent and moved for rehearing en banc based upon intradistrict conflict with <u>Currens v. State</u>, 363 So.2d 1116 (Fla. 4th DCA 1978) (Appendix 13-17). The Fourth District denied Petitioner's motion for rehearing on October 21, 1992 (Appendix 18-20).

Petitioner noticed his intent to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction to review this case on October 21, 1992. This jurisdiction brief follows.

- 3 -

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The present case held that directing an accused out of a lawfully parked vehicle in the absence of any criminal activity was a consensual encounter and not a stop requiring a founded suspicion. As the Fourth District noted in its opinion, its decision is in conflict with the Second District Court of Appeal, <u>Brown v. State</u>, 577 So.2d 708 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991) and <u>Jackson v.</u> <u>State</u>, 579 So.2d 871 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991). Since this decision from the Fourth District is in express and direct conflict with the decisions of two other district courts of appeal, this Court has jurisdiction to review the decision in Petitioner's case. Article V, Section 3(b)(3), <u>Florida Constitution</u>.

## ARGUMENT

. .

THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF  $\mathbf{THE}$ SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL AND THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Constitution of Florida empowers this Court to review a decision of a district court of appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal on the same question of law. In the present case, the Fourth District held that in the absence of any founded suspicion or probable cause, a police officer can approach a legally parked vehicle and order. The Fourth District ruled that such circumstances comprise a "consensual encounter" and not a detention (Appendix 1-8). The Fourth District rejected the analysis of the Second District in Brown v. State, 577 So.2d 708 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991) and Jackson v. State, 579 So.2d 871 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) (Appendix 9-10, 11-12), noting conflict with these cases (Appendix 1-8). Moreover, Judge Anstead, dissenting, cited the reasoning of the Second District in Brown, supra, as well as the more recent case of Gano, supra, and the Fifth District in Jackson, supra, as bases for reversing the suppression denial (Appendix 1-8, 9-10, 11-12).

In <u>Brown v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, as well as in <u>Gano v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Second District and in <u>Jackson v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Fifth District, held under similar facts that such an intrusion comprises a detention requiring a founded suspicion (Appendix 9-10, 11-12).

This Court has jurisdiction to review the decision in Petitioner's case because the District Court here specifically

- 5 -

acknowledges conflict with two other district courts of appeal. Article V, Section 3(b)(3), <u>Florida Constitution</u>; Rule 9.030(a)(2)(iv).

\*

Accordingly, Petitioner requests this Court to accept jurisdiction and to order briefs on the merits from both parties.

## CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited therein, Petitioner respectfully requests this Court accept jurisdiction of this case.