IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By-Chief Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 80,696

TEDD J. POPPLE,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

DOUGLAS J. GLAID Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar #249475 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 Telephone: (407) 837-5062

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

. i

۰.

The Petitioner was the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in a criminal prosecution from the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Indian River County, Florida. The Respondent, State of Florida, was the Appellee and the prosecution, respectively in the lower courts. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The symbol "A" will be used to refer to Petitioner's Appendix, which includes a conformed copy of the appellate court's opinion. Unless otherwise indicated, all emphasis has been supplied by Respondent.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

. i

• •

Respondent accepts Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts appearing on pages 2 through 3 of his jurisdictional brief to the extent that it is accurate and nonargumentative.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

, *i*

. .

Respondent respectfully requests this Court, in its discretion, to decline to accept jurisdiction in this case. Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court or of this Court, or that it falls under any of the subdivisions provided in Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2), or Art. V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980). Conflict simply does not appear within the four corners of the Fourth District's decision.

ARGUMENT

. ÷.

. .

PETITIONER IMPROPERLY INVOKES THE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT SINCE THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR OF THIS COURT.

Petitioner seeks review through conflict jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980) and Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), which provides that the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review a decision of a district court of appeal which <u>expressly</u> <u>and directly conflicts</u> with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to accept jurisdiction in this case, since Petitioner presents no legitimate basis for the invocation of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction.

Although Petitioner asserts that the Second District's decision in <u>Brown v. State</u>, 577 So.2d 708 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991) and the Fifth District's decision in <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 579 So.2d 871 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991), are in conflict with the Fourth District's opinion <u>sub judice</u>, a close comparison of these cases does not reveal the requisite express and direct conflict. Indeed, unlike Officer Wilmoth here, who observed Petitioner reaching under the seat and "flipping" about in his car (A 2), it is clear that the police officer in <u>Brown did not</u> observe any activity on the part

-4-

of the defendant that would cause him to be concerned about his personal safety. In fact, the officer in <u>Brown</u> testified that Brown was doing nothing suspicious. <u>Brown</u>, <u>supra</u>, 577 So.2d at 709. Moreover, the officer in <u>Brown</u> "commanded" Brown to get out of his car, as opposed to Officer Wilmoth's "request" here. (A 2). <u>Brown</u> at 709. Consequently, as the Fourth District itself held, the facts in <u>Brown</u> are distinguishable from those presented at bar and justify the different results reached in these cases. (A 3).

Similarly, in <u>Jackson</u>, <u>supra</u>, the scant facts fail to reveal the basis for the officer's direction to the defendant to exit his vehicle. Further, it is unclear in <u>Jackson</u> whether the officer involved therein had a concern for his personal safety, as did Officer Wilmoth in the instant case.

Thus, there simply exists no <u>express and direct</u> conflict between the decision of the Fourth District below and the decisions in <u>Brown</u>, <u>supra</u>, and <u>Jackson</u>, <u>supra</u>. Moreover, Respondent reminds this Court that it is well established that inherent or "implied" conflict cannot serve as a basis for the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court. <u>Department of Health &</u> <u>Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service,</u> <u>Inc.</u>, 498 So.2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986).

Consequently, since Petitioner has not shown any <u>express and direct</u> conflict from the face of the District Court's opinion, this Court's jurisdiction has not been established. <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980); <u>Reaves v.</u> <u>State</u>, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986).

-5-

CONCLUSION

1. B. B.

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing argument and authorities cited herein, Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction in this cause.